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          1  CITY UNIVERSITY OF NEW YORK

          2                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: We are calling

          3  this meeting, the combined meeting of the Finance

          4  and Higher Education Committee, to order. I will

          5  read an opening statement to introduce our topic

          6  today.

          7                 Good afternoon, and welcome.

          8                 Today we will be discussing the City

          9  University of New York's Fiscal Year 2000

         10  Preliminary Budget, and the proposed City tax levy

         11  funding provided for the community colleges'

         12  operating budget for Fiscal Year 2000.

         13                 It is approximately 79 million, which

         14  essentially satisfies the maintenance of effort

         15  requirement set by the state; however, the City

         16  again neglects to fund collective bargaining costs

         17  in Fiscal 2000 and beyond. In addition, it fails to

         18  advance any significant new funding for meeting the

         19  University's priorities included in the University's

         20  budget request.

         21                 The Administration has again this

         22  year put forward a half thought-out proposal

         23  regarding CUNY, to implement a voucher system for

         24  remedial services and remove them from CUNY's

         25  community colleges.
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          2                 This proposal will have serious

          3  negative fiscal implications for the City as a

          4  whole.

          5                 The Higher Education Committee is

          6  especially distressed by the Administration's

          7  proposed elimination of the City Council sponsored

          8  City Merit Scholarship Program, a $7 million cut,

          9  and the incredibly shortsighted plan to eliminate

         10  funding to expand the College Now Program which we

         11  have all lauded with its great success. A 1.2

         12  million cut, these actions are a direct insult to

         13  the Council which included these initiatives as

         14  Hallmarks of our adopted budget in Fiscal 1999.

         15                 On the state side, we are extremely

         16  troubled by Governor Pataki's plan to undermine the

         17  TAP program, by reducing eligibility and awards for

         18  college students, particularly CUNY students.

         19                 Finally, I would like to acknowledge

         20  that the CUNY Board of Trustees in January succeeded

         21  in passing a resolution to eliminate remediation in

         22  our senior colleges. This single action, which has

         23  been firmly opposed by the majority of the Higher

         24  Education Committee, will have a profound impact on

         25  CUNY as a whole, and we plan to be vigilant in the
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          2  monitoring of its implementation and its impact on

          3  open admissions and CUNY operations. We welcome Vice

          4  Chancellor Louise Mirrer, and any of her other staff

          5  that she would choose to bring with her.

          6                 VICE CHANCELLOR MIRRER: Thank you

          7  very much, Chair Marshall.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: You are

          9  welcome.

         10                 VICE CHANCELLOR MIRRER:  Thank you

         11  for this opportunity to talk with you about the City

         12  University of New York and the proposed 1999/2000

         13  City and State budget. Thank you also for your

         14  long-standing support.

         15                 I am joined today by several of my

         16  colleagues, and I would like to ask that they

         17  introduce themselves to you.

         18                 INTERIM CHANCELLOR BRABHAM: Hi. My

         19  name is Sherry Brabham, I am Interim Vice Chancellor

         20  for Budget, Finance and Information Services.

         21                 VICE CHANCELLOR MACARI: Emma Macari.

         22  Vice Chancellor for Facilities, Planning and

         23  Construction.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Good, we will

         25  have some questions for you.
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          2                 VICE CHANCELLOR MIRRER: I know that

          3  you are well aware of our community colleges and of

          4  their enormous contributions to the communities of

          5  our City. Let me highlight for the record some

          6  examples of these contributions.

          7                 In the Bronx five unique programs

          8  give men and women the skills they need to find

          9  employment and make themselves independent of public

         10  assistance. Hostos Community College offers health

         11  career programs that provide people with a technical

         12  and professional skills they need to work in

         13  hospitals and community health centers.

         14                 In Brooklyn, job training programs at

         15  Kings Borough prepare people for careers in

         16  health-related fields, and at the same time provide

         17  a work force to health care institutions in the

         18  borough.

         19                 In Manhattan, Borough of Manhattan

         20  Community College offers on-site business management

         21  programs with 50 local employers, thereby providing

         22  work experience to students during their course of

         23  study.

         24                 In Queens, Queensborough Community

         25  College's external education for the Home Bound
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          2  Program, pioneers in offering higher education and

          3  help with employment to students unable to leave

          4  their home or hospital.

          5                 LaGuardia Community College's

          6  Cooperative Education Program also allows students

          7  to gain valuable work experience in fields such as

          8  advertising, banking and high technology

          9  manufacturing, while they earn college credit.

         10                 CUNY is proud of what it offers New

         11  York. Bettering the lives of New Yorkers is what we

         12  are about. And the University has embarked upon a

         13  course of reform. But before I speak of our new

         14  initiative, let me describe how the City's

         15  preliminary 1999/2000 budget, the State Executive

         16  Budget, would affect CUNY.

         17                 The City's preliminary 1999/2000

         18  budget recognizes $500,000 of additional revenue

         19  from the University's adult and continuing education

         20  programs, and $1.5 million in tenant rentals for the

         21  newly acquired Center 3 Building at LaGuardia

         22  Community College. However, it eliminates the $1.2

         23  million provided by the City Council to expand the

         24  University's College Now Program, and it eliminates

         25  the Council-sponsored highly successful $7 million

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            8

          1  CITY UNIVERSITY OF NEW YORK

          2  scholarship program.

          3                 Furthermore, it provides no

          4  additional funding for mandatory cost increases,

          5  including collective bargaining or for programmatic

          6  initiatives at the community colleges.

          7                 The State Executive Budget recommends

          8  continued state base aid of $2,050 per full-time

          9  equivalent student. Aid for child care, College

         10  Discovery, contract courses, and workforce

         11  development remains at the 1998/1999 level of $2.4

         12  million. This amounts to total state support of

         13  $117.8 million for the community colleges.

         14                 The State Executive Budget recommends

         15  a budget level of $974 million for the senior

         16  colleges. It proposes to transfer $5 million for

         17  CUNY Board of Education Collaborative Programs to

         18  the Board of Education's budget.

         19                 The recommended budget is virtually

         20  identical with the 1998/1999 funding level, which

         21  for all practical purposes was the same as

         22  1997/1998, 1996/1997 and 1995/1996. It acknowledges

         23  neither the priorities the University set out in its

         24  budget request, nor the various projected increases

         25  that inflation and mandatory costs will necessitate.
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          2                 Not only does the State Executive

          3  Budget fail to fund the University's request, it

          4  also threatens the ability of students to attend

          5  college by proposing reductions in the Tuition

          6  Assistance Program or TAP. The Executive Budget

          7  recommends reducing the maximum award of TAP funds

          8  from the present 90 percent tuition to 75 percent,

          9  and increasing the number of credits required for

         10  full-time status to 15, from 12. The State proposes

         11  to reward students who under these new circumstances

         12  graduate on time, defined as four years for

         13  bachelors programs and two years for associate

         14  programs, by returning the 25 percent award

         15  reduction to them upon graduation.

         16                 CUNY's 1999/2000 budget request

         17  proposes expanding existing programs and

         18  establishing new ones intended to raise standards,

         19  expand opportunity and improve service.

         20                 It offers an accounting of our use of

         21  public resources so that our funding partners can be

         22  assured that the University's expenditures are

         23  consistent with intended purposes and achieve

         24  promised results.

         25                 For the community colleges, the
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          2  University's budget request totals $20.7 million in

          3  additional funding from the City, and an increase of

          4  $150 for FTE in State aid, requiring an additional

          5  $8.7 million for state support.

          6                 For the senior colleges, the budget

          7  request totals $77.7 million in additional state

          8  funds to pay for both mandatory needs and

          9  programmatic initiatives.

         10                 The absence of new funding in both

         11  municipal and state budgets seriously burdens each

         12  of the community and senior colleges in its efforts

         13  to expand services, improve programs and sustain

         14  access. Withholding additional funds for collective

         15  bargaining and other mandatory needs, effectively

         16  imposes a budget cut on the colleges.

         17                 The elimination of the College Now

         18  funds will impact on our ability to maintain the

         19  current program, which was expanded to all of the

         20  community colleges this semester. We would have to

         21  reduce the program back to two colleges and 30 high

         22  schools from the current 49 high schools.

         23                 It most likely would effect several

         24  thousand high school seniors.

         25                 The City University Merit Scholarship
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          2  Program begun this year provides scholarships to

          3  in-coming freshman who graduated from public or

          4  private New York City high schools in a year prior

          5  to enrollment, who maintained at least an 80 grade

          6  point average in high school and completed at least

          7  10 college preparatory initiative credits.

          8                 The program currently grants

          9  scholarships to over 4,000 students. These students

         10  come from all five boroughs and attend every one of

         11  the University's undergraduate schools.

         12                 The elimination of the program would

         13  effect students' ability to attend college and

         14  impact on the University's enrollment levels. For

         15  the community colleges, any reduction in enrollment

         16  would also lead to a reduction in state aid.

         17                 The financial aid proposal, if

         18  enacted, would result in a loss to students of over

         19  85,000 annual TAP awards and $99 million in

         20  financial aid, a decrease of over 75 percent.

         21                 These recommended changes to the

         22  Tuition Assistance Program would hit CUNY students

         23  especially hard. Only 25 percent of CUNY

         24  undergraduates fit the traditional college student

         25  profile, for example, 18 years old for a high school
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          2  graduate, full-time attendance.

          3                 Forty-three percent of our students

          4  are 25 years old or older, and 41 percent are from

          5  households with incomes of less than $20,000. Half

          6  of our students are not native speakers of English,

          7  59 percent work regularly while they study for a

          8  degree. Fifty-three percent are the first in their

          9  families to attend college. Sixty-two percent are

         10  female and 30 percent support children.

         11                 Thus, CUNY students tend to be older

         12  and much poorer than those at SUNY or in the private

         13  sector.

         14                 Nearly 60 percent of our full-time

         15  students enroll for less than 15 credits a semester.

         16  While some may respond to the proposed restrictions

         17  in financial aid by shouldering heavier course

         18  loads, many simply cannot. Thus the students who

         19  need financial assistance most will find themselves

         20  precluded from college study.

         21                 The changes in TAP presumably intend

         22  to spur students towards graduating on time, leaving

         23  aside a now widely acknowledged change in graduation

         24  rates across the country, where five years has

         25  become the norm for completing a bachelor degree
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          2  program, this proposed incentive will not, in our

          3  opinion, move students more quickly toward

          4  graduation.

          5                 What will help is more sections of

          6  required courses from which students now find

          7  themselves closed out - better freshman year

          8  programs and large evening, weekend and distance

          9  learning instruction and more effective student

         10  services.

         11                 The University's 1999/2000 budget

         12  request asks for funds for initiatives that will

         13  produce these results. I would like to draw your

         14  attention to a few.

         15                 The University conducts many highly

         16  successful programs, some in collaboration with the

         17  public schools, which ensure the students enter

         18  college adequately prepared.

         19                 College Now, which the late president

         20  Leon M. Goldstein founded 18 years ago at

         21  Kingsborough Community College, offers high school

         22  student skills testing, college level course work,

         23  orientation and advising.

         24                 Students who take advantage of this

         25  opportunity require fewer remedial courses once they
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          2  get to college, persist in college longer and

          3  graduate at a higher rate.

          4                 We had planned to extend College Now

          5  further so that it reached as many high school

          6  students as possible throughout the City, but to do

          7  so we need the restoration of the $1.2 million, plus

          8  additional funds. And I would like to just take a

          9  moment to thank you, Chair Marshall, and your

         10  colleagues on the City Council, for having provided

         11  us the funding that has allowed us this year to

         12  extend the College Now Program to all of our

         13  community colleges.

         14                 English language Immersion Programs

         15  at BMCC, Bronx, Kingsborough, LaGuardia, New York

         16  City Tech and York give non-English speaking

         17  students the English language training they need to

         18  enter college, stay the course and graduate.

         19                 We want to strengthen and expand this

         20  program and we need your support to do so.

         21                 The University has mounted a major

         22  effort to improve teacher education. We are

         23  determined to graduate teachers who are competent to

         24  prepare students for the new graduation standards

         25  set by the Board of Regents. Our schools of
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          2  education have raised the standards for admission,

          3  enlarged the general education component of their

          4  programs, especially in mathematics and science, and

          5  strengthened articulation with community colleges

          6  where many prospective teachers start college

          7  education.

          8                 We have developed incentive programs

          9  to attract top flight (sic) students to careers in

         10  education and are working on a leadership program at

         11  the doctorate level.

         12                 We have sought and received

         13  foundation and private funds in support of these

         14  efforts. We need additional public funding.

         15                 CUNY's collaborative ventures with

         16  New York businesses contribute directly to the

         17  economic development of the City and of the State.

         18  The Borough of Manhattan Community College has

         19  developed a BMCC development corporation, to foster

         20  economic development downtown, and within the last

         21  month has has concluded an agreement with a

         22  corporate partner to promote and incubate business

         23  in the emerging  digital video industry.

         24                 The Bronx and Professional

         25  Development Institute at Bronx Community College
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          2  serves Bronx businesses and non-profit organizations

          3  to grant funded initiatives and direct contracts.

          4                 In the last three years, $1.5 million

          5  has been generated to provide services to 21

          6  businesses for improvement in such areas as quality

          7  management, diversity training, supervisory skills,

          8  workplace ESL and computer training. We need funds

          9  to continue these efforts in support of a local

         10  economy.

         11                 In the University's continuing

         12  education and workforce development programs, some

         13  150,000 students currently hone their skills in such

         14  technical and professional areas as computing,

         15  telecommunications, health service and language

         16  training.

         17                 Hostos Community College's Office of

         18  Community and Continuing Education offers courses in

         19  medical billing, real estate sales and business math

         20  to upgrade the skills of workers seeking career

         21  advancement.

         22                 The workforce improvement initiatives

         23  at LaGuardia Community College include a summer

         24  youth employment program, computer training for

         25  long-term unemployed and dislocated workers, and the
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          2  City's largest program for hearing-impaired adults.

          3                 These programs create and maintain

          4  the New York City workforce and they deserve

          5  funding.

          6                 CUNY is determined to become a leader

          7  in educational technology, including libraries and

          8  information systems. The graduates of our vocational

          9  training programs and our degree programs are

         10  entering a complex workplace, and we must provide

         11  them with the necessary skills. To do this we must

         12  update the University's technical infrastructure,

         13  provide more than just rudimentary access to the

         14  worldwide web in our libraries, and improve our

         15  distance learning instructional technology both on

         16  and off campus.

         17                 With additional funding, we will be

         18  able to improve the University's technical

         19  infrastructure and strengthen the educational

         20  technology services we provide to both our students

         21  and to the larger community.

         22                 The CUNY colleges are not only

         23  intellectual centers, they are also centers of art

         24  and culture in their communities. The Bronx

         25  Community College, the Hall of Fame for Great
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          2  Americans, honors prominent American scientists,

          3  artists, intellectuals and public servants, serving

          4  both the college and the community as a center for

          5  educational programs and exhibits.

          6                 At Kingsborough Community College,

          7  the Performing Arts Center offers a year-round

          8  series of lectures, concerts, film and theater

          9  productions for the public, including the summer

         10  music festival and children's theme festival.

         11                 These are just two examples of the

         12  type of artistic and cultural programs that are

         13  available on every CUNY campus.

         14                 Single campus capital projects

         15  currently underway include creation of an academic

         16  village at Kingsborough Community College,

         17  renovation of Powdermaker Hall at Queens College and

         18  construction of the West Quad Building at Brooklyn

         19  College.

         20                 We have requested funding to continue

         21  these projects and begin new projects, such as

         22  building renovations at City College, Queensborough

         23  Community College and Bronx Community College, the

         24  design of Phase II at John Jay College and the

         25  construction of a new facility at Medgar Evers

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            19

          1  CITY UNIVERSITY OF NEW YORK

          2  College.

          3                 Proposed projects include the

          4  rehabilitation of campus theaters and athletic

          5  fields and the creation of media centers.

          6                 The City University of New York has

          7  improved the lives of countless New Yorkers - those

          8  seeking a degree, those requiring additional

          9  computer skills for their jobs, those striving to

         10  leave public assistance, those needing to learn

         11  English so that they can find a job and feel at home

         12  in their new country, those on a quest to start

         13  their own businesses, those looking for the latest

         14  publication on a particular topic or those simply

         15  looking for an evening of good music or good

         16  theater.

         17                 CUNY takes pride in its enormous

         18  contribution to the well-being of New Yorkers, for

         19  we, like the City Council, are here to serve the

         20  public.

         21                 We thank you for supporting the

         22  University, both morally and financially, over long

         23  decades.

         24                 In closing, I would just like to call

         25  your attention to the attachments to my testimony.
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          2  The first offers a representative sample of honors

          3  that CUNY has received. The second is the most

          4  recent calendar of CUNY events.

          5                 We ask you for your continued support

          6  and we assure you of ours.

          7                 Thank you very much.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Thank you very

          9  much, Vice Chancellor Mirrer. We have a few

         10  questions, but I would first like to introduce my

         11  colleagues that are here with us today. Councilman

         12  Golden, from Brooklyn, Councilwoman Robinson from

         13  Brooklyn, Councilman Perkins from Manhattan. They

         14  also have questions to ask.

         15                 Just recently, and that is why I am

         16  going to tackle it first, at our recent hearing on

         17  CUNY immigrant issues, one of our witnesses

         18  testified that CUNY plans to scale back its ESL

         19  offerings, this information was inconsistent with

         20  the earlier testimony presented by CUNY, would you

         21  clarify that issue for us?

         22                 VICE CHANCELLOR MIRRER: We have no

         23  plan to scale back our ESL offerings. We have not do

         24  so.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: All right.
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          2                 VICE CHANCELLOR MIRRER: In fact, this

          3  year we increased the number of students

          4  participating in CUNY's Language Immersion Program,

          5  which is an ESL program.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Yes, we were

          7  quite impressed with what is being offered. All

          8  right, I am glad that you put that to rest. I will

          9  move on.

         10                 Now, this year the Council's

         11  scholarship program for high school students who

         12  maintain a B average, do you believe that this

         13  program has been successful? What is your prognosis

         14  so far?

         15                 VICE CHANCELLOR MIRRER: The prognosis

         16  has been enormously successful. As you know, Chair

         17  Marshall, CUNY has wanted to raise its standards to

         18  attract the very best students through our colleges,

         19  because we believe that they will be enormously

         20  successful in our programs, and this scholarship

         21  which targets those high-achieving students, and

         22  entices them into the University with a financial

         23  incentive has been enormously successful, and we

         24  believe that it has been very helpful to the

         25  University, in terms of a recruitment device, also
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          2  in terms of impacting on the lives of those students

          3  who will benefit tremendously from the programs we

          4  offer.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Yes, I was

          6  impressed. As you know, when the Speaker had his

          7  State of the City Address, they were here and he

          8  proudly pointed to them and a I mingled with the

          9  students and talked with them, they were very, very

         10  appreciative for this incentive.

         11                 Now the Mayor has decided to cut that

         12  money from the budget. I don't know what kind of --

         13  how do you think that will impact on this program

         14  that was just newly introduced?

         15                 VICE CHANCELLOR MIRRER: Well, as I

         16  said, the program, for which we are deeply grateful

         17  to you, has been very helpful to our students,

         18  particularly those students who can meet the

         19  challenges of our most challenging programs, and

         20  this is a path that the University has set itself on

         21  to improve standards and to attract really the best

         22  qualified students so that the impact would be on

         23  precisely those students that we want to attract

         24  most.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: And I am sure
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          2  that there were students who were looking forward to

          3  trying to make it this year, and might have even

          4  tried to plan their finances accordingly. So, we are

          5  very concerned about that. We were looking for

          6  initiatives to encourage that, rather than cut back

          7  on the students we thought maybe by offering them

          8  something. Our Speaker's word is it should be

          9  affordable and it should be available and it should

         10  be affordable, and we had even hoped that it would

         11  be a recruitment tool.

         12                 VICE CHANCELLOR MIRRER: It has been a

         13  recruitment tool, and were we to be able to continue

         14  the program it would continue to be a very important

         15  recruitment tool.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Well, we will

         17  pass that on, of course, in our presentation to our

         18  colleagues in general, because that is something

         19  that everyone is very concerned about.

         20                 Now, we also have the problem with

         21  College Now, it was on a growth path to be in every

         22  single one of our community colleges. While you did

         23  refer to that in your statement, we don't know

         24  exactly how it is going to take place now, because

         25  now that means we are going to have to cut back the
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          2  amount of high schools that are involved; is that

          3  the way you see it?

          4                 VICE CHANCELLOR MIRRER: Well, without

          5  the money we would have to rethink the number of

          6  high schools that we could serve and the number of

          7  our colleges that could afford to run the program.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: So that you

          9  would even cut back on the number of colleges

         10  involved?

         11                 VICE CHANCELLOR MIRRER: We might well

         12  have to do that.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: All right.

         14                 Let me move and ask my colleagues.

         15  Councilman Perkins.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Thank you,

         17  Madame Chair.

         18                 Thank you for your testimony. I have

         19  some questions. First I want to make one quick

         20  question related to your testimony. On page three

         21  you talk about an increase of 150 for FTE and state

         22  aid, and I am wondering that there was some unfunded

         23  collective bargaining problems before in which this

         24  increase was used for that purpose, am I correct?

         25                 INTERIM CHANCELLOR BRABHAM: Yes, that
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          2  was a situation last year.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Right. And

          4  then in fact it was supposed to be used for enhanced

          5  student supports of some type or another?

          6                 INTERIM CHANCELLOR BRABHAM: That's

          7  correct. For program enhancements.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: I just wanted

          9  to make sure about that. Do we anticipate that

         10  again?

         11                 INTERIM CHANCELLOR BRABHAM: Well,

         12  what we are asking for from the state is, we got the

         13  $150 last year, as you know, that we used to fund

         14  some of the collective bargaining, so we were not

         15  able to use that for program enhancements. What we

         16  are asking for the next year is for an additional

         17  $150 per FTE for the Year '99/2000, which would be

         18  on top of last year's $150. And we are also

         19  requesting at this point that the City fund our

         20  collective bargaining increases for next year. So,

         21  the best of all possible worlds would be that the

         22  State would give us the $150 and the City would fund

         23  collective bargaining.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Let me ask

         25  you now with regard to the Mayor and CUNY. What is
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          2  CUNY's understanding of the Mayor's CUNY voucher

          3  program proposal that he revealed in his State of

          4  the City Address; do you support such a proposal?

          5  How would it work? Has the Administration met with

          6  you to discuss the particulars of such a proposal?

          7  Has the Board taken this concept up formally or

          8  informally, and what is the Board's position?

          9                 VICE CHANCELLOR MIRRER: We have, like

         10  everyone else, seen the voucher program mentioned in

         11  the Mayor's State of the City Address. The voucher

         12  program has not been discussed with any member of

         13  the Administration at this point, nor has it come up

         14  as a proposal or even as a topic among our Board of

         15  Trustees who make policy for the University and

         16  would have to be involved in formulating a version

         17  of whatever the proposal is for the University.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Do you have a

         19  position that you would want to share at this point,

         20  in terms of the impact?

         21                 VICE CHANCELLOR MIRRER: I think we

         22  would need to have more information about what this

         23  means. As I said, at this point we have no

         24  information further than the mention of the program

         25  in the State of the City Address.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Thank you.

          3                 The Mayor's Task Force on CUNY headed

          4  by Ben O. Schmidt (phonetic), has undertaken a

          5  seemingly exhaustive and expensive review of the

          6  University; when do you expect a report to be issued

          7  publicly? Can you comment on the preliminary

          8  findings on the Task Force at this time? Can you

          9  quantify or give us some sense of the cost of this

         10  research to CUNY in terms of the demands the task

         11  force has made on CUNY resources and staff as

         12  sources of information?

         13                 VICE CHANCELLOR MIRRER: Our latest

         14  information about the timing of the release of the

         15  Task Force Report is that it will be out in about a

         16  month. That is as much as we know. We don't have a

         17  fixed date, we haven't been given one.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Some time in

         19  April, in other words.

         20                 VICE CHANCELLOR MIRRER: It sounds

         21  like some time in April.

         22                 On your other questions, preliminary

         23  findings. There have been, as far as we know, no

         24  leaks of the preliminary findings of that task

         25  force. We have seen public presentations by some
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          2  members at the head of the task force and had

          3  discussions with him, but they have been in the

          4  realm of the off the record and not representative

          5  of Task Force findings.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Have you any

          7  idea of the cost the task force has imposed on CUNY

          8  resources and staff, as sources of information?

          9                 VICE CHANCELLOR MIRRER: I couldn't

         10  quantify that. Our position has been that we are a

         11  public institution and we have been very cooperative

         12  at the task force and with the ancillary groups that

         13  have worked with the task force doing research. The

         14  University does have quite a lot of data about

         15  itself, we have a very, very good Office of

         16  Institutional Research, so we know quite a lot about

         17  ourselves, and we have shared that information with

         18  the Task Force.

         19                 We have attempted to provide them

         20  with copies of reports, reports that have been

         21  presented to our Board of Education, and you know,

         22  we are already a finished product, so that although

         23  we have been cooperative and we have spent time

         24  speaking with members of the Task Force and their

         25  staff, we have not embarked on any particular
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          2  project that has been above and beyond the normal

          3  kinds of information the University would know about

          4  it, so --

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: The

          6  Administration made a big stink about attendance and

          7  taking attendance at CUNY, have you done anything in

          8  that regard? And what costs, if any, were incurred

          9  by changing the University's attendance practices?

         10                 VICE CHANCELLOR MIRRER: Well, we

         11  didn't change the attendance policy. The practice

         12  and policy is at the community colleges for

         13  attendance to be taken, and attendance has been

         14  taken and we have an 84 percent attendance, positive

         15  attendance record, which is above that which had

         16  been asked for by the Mayor.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: What did the

         18  Mayor ask for?

         19                 VICE CHANCELLOR MIRRER: I believe he

         20  asked for 80 percent.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Eighty

         22  percent. So we are doing A plus?

         23                 VICE CHANCELLOR MIRRER: Yes, we are.

         24  And it didn't cost us anything because we were

         25  already doing it.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Okay, thank

          3  you very much. I appreciate it.

          4                 VICE CHANCELLOR MIRRER: Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Councilwoman

          6  Robinson.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON: Thank you

          8  very much, Chairman Marshall, and good afternoon.

          9                 So, the question becomes then, where

         10  do they get their data? Because if a college is

         11  operating at an 84 percent level in terms of

         12  attendance, what is all of the hullabaloo about

         13  people not graduating on time and the attendance and

         14  people not being present, where do you think that

         15  comes from?

         16                 VICE CHANCELLOR MIRRER: I don't know.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON: There is an

         18  expression that I use, the air was pregnant with

         19  silence. That is where they get it from, the air

         20  apparently.

         21                 My question then becomes, in the

         22  midst of the trusty actions on remediation, we

         23  recognize it will cause thousands of students to be

         24  denied entry into the senior colleges as a result of

         25  the recently adopted policy. Has CUNY been able to
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          2  -- will CUNY be able to provide services enough at

          3  community colleges without allowing a push-out

          4  affect on traditional community college applicants?

          5                 VICE CHANCELLOR MIRRER: We believe

          6  so.

          7                 The resolution that you referred to

          8  as being phased in over the next couple of years,

          9  and the impacts that you describe on the community

         10  colleges will be somewhat differential, depending on

         11  what a college offers.

         12                 Some of the colleges to be impacted

         13  already have associate degree programs and some of

         14  those colleges, many, if not most of the students,

         15  are enrolled in Associate's, start out in Associate

         16  Degree programs, so the impact will be somewhat less

         17  great.

         18                 But I would like to say in general

         19  that the Board has requested of each president of an

         20  affected college a plan, an implementation plan that

         21  would spell out much more specifically the type of

         22  information that you are asking about. Those plans

         23  are due May 15th, and we expect that after that

         24  point we would be able to give you the kind of

         25  information you are looking for.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON: Then my next

          3  question is, your budget will reflect the change,

          4  your multi-year budget will reflect a change in

          5  terms of what is happening within the schools?

          6                 INTERIM CHANCELLOR BRABHAM: I expect

          7  that will be the case. As a matter of fact, not only

          8  is the University engaged in these plans introduced

          9  but we also are doing a master plan, which is due in

         10  the Year 2000, and all of the planning documents

         11  that the University produces, whether it is the

         12  master plan, the plans of the colleges are producing

         13  budget requests, should reflect the kind of input we

         14  get from the colleges in the spring.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON: Then I would

         16  request that through the Chair that the document

         17  that is to be presented on May 15th, if you could

         18  share that with the Council, so that we would be

         19  aware as well of what the belt-tightening measures

         20  are, so-to-speak, in terms of the reorganization of

         21  the system.

         22                 VICE CHANCELLOR MIRRER: We will share

         23  those plans with you.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON: Thank you

         25  very much.
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          2                 My next question is, what was the

          3  approximate cost for CUNY to provide the expanded

          4  Tuition-free Summer skills Immersion Program at the

          5  senior and community colleges?

          6                 VICE CHANCELLOR MIRRER: We spent

          7  about another million dollars in addition to what we

          8  had spent the year before on the program.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON: Do you have

         10  a cost estimate as to how many more students were

         11  served as compared to '97 to this past year?

         12                 VICE CHANCELLOR MIRRER: We served

         13  several more thousand, several thousand additional

         14  students.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON: Several

         16  thousand additional students?

         17                 VICE CHANCELLOR MIRRER: Several, yes.

         18  The reckoning that we have is in terms of the

         19  students served and the number of classes that the

         20  students were able to take, so the number of seats

         21  occupied was significantly higher than it had been

         22  the year before.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON: Thank you.

         24  There are some questions I have in terms of, Madame

         25  Chair, in terms of Medgar Evers College. Could you
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          2  tell me, Medgar Evers College was given four-year

          3  status, but it did not receive four-year college

          4  status money. Can you tell me what is the plan for

          5  Medgar Evers College at this particular time?

          6                 VICE CHANCELLOR MACARI: In the

          7  capital Medgar Evers was left to be as a community

          8  college, sharing 50/50 in the capital projects, and

          9  we have requested Medgar Evers as our number one

         10  priority for a campus-specific project that is

         11  funded both by City and State for their first new

         12  building in the next, to meet with their space

         13  shortages, as the Academic Building 1 as we call it,

         14  and it is there and the State has supported it, the

         15  state of New York has supported the five-year plan

         16  of almost, well $100 million for the community

         17  colleges and Medgar Evers, and we need the matching

         18  money from the City to be able to -- this year we

         19  are allowed to bond $10 million, so five of those

         20  ten would go towards Medgar Evers and the other five

         21  covers other projects. We are hoping to --

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON: But you have

         23  the authority at this time to bond for $10 million?

         24                 VICE CHANCELLOR MACARI: Only if it is

         25  matched by the City and the City has to match the
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          2  $10 million.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON: Has there

          4  been any indicator that the City is going to match

          5  those dollars?

          6                 VICE CHANCELLOR MACARI: Well, we are

          7  meeting with the City and we are hopeful -- we have

          8  a meeting scheduled to go over all of our projects

          9  and what they mean and we are hopeful.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON: Okay.

         11                 Let me ask this question: How will

         12  CUNY address the overcrowding problem at Medgar

         13  Evers College? Is that through this building?

         14                 VICE CHANCELLOR MIRRER: Yes, exactly.

         15  It is the Academic Building 1 that will take care of

         16  a lot of the space needs.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON: Okay, thank

         18  you very much.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Just to

         20  continue on with Medgar Evers; what about the garage

         21  across the street, the Sanitation garage? What is

         22  happening with that?

         23                 VICE CHANCELLOR MACARI: It is a

         24  capital question.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Yes.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            36

          1  CITY UNIVERSITY OF NEW YORK

          2                 VICE CHANCELLOR MACARI: As you know,

          3  we have funds for acquisition of some areas around

          4  Medgar Evers and the Sanitation garage is one of

          5  them. We are waiting for the City to finalize the

          6  plans for relocating the sanitation garage to a site

          7  that they have identified which as you know passed

          8  the City Council, with all of the -- they went

          9  through the ULURP process and the City is now

         10  negotiating the lease. It looks promising for us but

         11  we heard just recently that they are negotiating the

         12  lease and it involves some construction to

         13  accommodate sanitation, so they were reviewing the

         14  plans and when they review the plans and then they

         15  cost that, and incorporate those costs on the lease.

         16  We also are having a special meeting to deal with

         17  that short lease, so the next time we talk, I hope I

         18  have some good news.

         19                 But otherwise, we are going after the

         20  other sites, that the trustees approved a number of

         21  sites and they were part of our master plan, and

         22  those we are negotiating with the owners. We have

         23  some --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: And they are

         25  all right near Medgar Evers?
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          2                 VICE CHANCELLOR MACARI: Well, yes.

          3  Sanitation is the one in the center and the two

          4  sides there are sites that are, one of them is

          5  vacant and the other ones are for sale. The other

          6  ones are easier and we are in the process of

          7  negotiating with the owners.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: All right, once

          9  the land has been acquired, do we have the money to

         10  develop?

         11                 Could you just kind of give us an

         12  idea where things are?

         13                 In other words, right now we are

         14  simply waiting for the City to finish negotiating

         15  and that is to take the property, to condemn them,

         16  right?

         17                 VICE CHANCELLOR MACARI: Right.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: For public use.

         19                 How far along are they in those

         20  discussions?

         21                 VICE CHANCELLOR MACARI: We are not

         22  planning on condemnation.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: I see.

         24                 VICE CHANCELLOR MACARI: Condemnation,

         25  we have that ability if it is needed.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: I see.

          3                 VICE CHANCELLOR MACARI: But we are

          4  not planning -- we would never condemn the

          5  Sanitation garage, and then we would --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Well, that one

          7  I understand --

          8                 VICE CHANCELLOR MACARI: The other

          9  owners --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Yes, the other

         11  owners.

         12                 VICE CHANCELLOR MACARI: -- Are in

         13  discussions and it looks hopeful.

         14                 We have the funds for acquisition. We

         15  have bonded half of it, we need to bond the other

         16  half, but we have been working with the City. When

         17  we get very close to that acquisition time, then we

         18  will ask them to bond the money because there is no

         19  need to bond it unless we are very close to offering

         20  money so that other half of that money will be

         21  bonded hopefully soon.

         22                 But after we acquire, this is what we

         23  are asking for, the Academic Building, we don't have

         24  funds to start developing that, that is the project

         25  that we have the $5 million waiting on the state
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          2  side to be matched by the City side.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: All right, so

          4  the City has to really get with it, as far as the $5

          5  million is concerned, that is what I hear you are

          6  saying.

          7                 Also vivid in my mind is the picture

          8  of President Jackson standing in the middle of a

          9  science lab and all of the tiles on the floor are

         10  loose, what about the interior of the school and

         11  maintaining it?

         12                 VICE CHANCELLOR MIRRER: That was at

         13  Carrol Street, which is a very old building, 100

         14  year plus building, and we have several projects

         15  that are going on. It is just not happening fast

         16  enough and I don't blame President Jackson to be

         17  frustrated. But all of those projects are ongoing

         18  and we have put the push on the Dormitory Authority

         19  who manages those projects and they are really

         20  ongoing and we have had some good meetings with the

         21  college which are very satisfied with the plan of

         22  action that we have for the immediate needs for all

         23  of these maintenance issues that they have with the

         24  rules. So, we have a plan of action of immediate

         25  things to be done, and then the longer term which
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          2  includes the academic village and the renovation of

          3  the Carol Street. So, construction is, as you know,

          4  real hard, and we are working with them to fix them.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: I have had a

          6  little experience with that, and I have seen where

          7  it has flourished and moved on time, and I have seen

          8  where we neglect it and allow it to slip away from

          9  us.  And one example is Elmhurst Hospital. The

         10  director there really stayed on top of it, all of

         11  the contracts are being met on time and the hospital

         12  is now something that we as a City can be proud that

         13  we are offering to the residents of our City,

         14  whereas other situations, even some of the whole

         15  projects have been cancelled. So that we would hope

         16  that certainly from our university standpoint we are

         17  pressuring.

         18                 Now, it is all in the Dormitory

         19  Authority; is that it?

         20                 VICE CHANCELLOR MACARI: The projects

         21  that were at Medgar Evers were Dormitory Authority

         22  managed projects, yes, they were.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Yes. Well, we

         24  need to, and I mean, if necessary, that is why we

         25  are here, to help to make sure those projects move
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          2  forward, if they are not moving forward fast enough.

          3  The State is criticizing the School Construction

          4  Authority, and here we have the Dormitory Authority

          5  taking its own sweet time.

          6                 VICE CHANCELLOR MACARI: They have

          7  stepped up to the plate and we have asked them to

          8  designate one construction manager person for that

          9  college, which is not usual when we don't have a

         10  large project but because they are small and they

         11  are very disruptive to the college and they are

         12  happening in two locations, there are elevators and

         13  other rooms in the Calb Street Building and in the

         14  Bedford Building, so they stepped up to give one

         15  person full time there which is good.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Well, I think

         17  that we would like to meet with yourself and whoever

         18  from the City University, and the Dormitory

         19  Authority people who are responsible for that

         20  building. We would like to set up such a meeting and

         21  to see how it is coming along. We want to know how

         22  it is progressing.

         23                 VICE CHANCELLOR MACARI: You might

         24  know that our Board of Trustees asked for the same

         25  meeting, and the Board of the Construction Fund,
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          2  which has some trustees but other members, and we

          3  have met with them and the Dormitory Authority was

          4  there, and that is when we crafted this plan with

          5  dates and dollars and they were very satisfied with

          6  progress.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: I would like

          8  this Committee to meet with them too.

          9                 VICE CHANCELLOR MACARI: Sure.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: So we will be

         11  talking with you about it, as you can begin to

         12  explore putting it together. We would like to meet

         13  with them.

         14                 VICE CHANCELLOR MACARI: Sure.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: With Hostos,

         16  you see with Hostos University College, we actually

         17  had to cut back on -- rather a very good and

         18  extensive plan we have had to cut back on it because

         19  the money was too slow in coming.

         20                 That is another situation which I

         21  wish that we could remedy. You know Hostos has

         22  received a lot of criticism, and I know that Dr.

         23  Fernandez is really trying to pull that college

         24  together and we need to meet her and I don't want to

         25  see that happen here and I would like to see what it
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          2  is that we can do to retrieve that wonderful plan

          3  that they had for Hostos, we would like to talk with

          4  you separately about it.

          5                 VICE CHANCELLOR MACARI: Okay, fine.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: I am reminded

          7  by our fiscal people, our capital people that the

          8  City Council put the money in for Hostos.

          9                 VICE CHANCELLOR MACARI: And we are

         10  working with the college in rescoping this project

         11  and the college is very, very happy with the way

         12  that we are rescoping this project, given the fact

         13  that their needs have changed, their enrollment has

         14  changed. So that project that we had is being

         15  rescoped and needs to stay within the money that we

         16  have. But we will give you a special briefing and I

         17  think that would be better.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: In other words,

         19  the rescoping is around financial issues, not

         20  educational issues as it was originally planned.

         21                 VICE CHANCELLOR MACARI: I would have

         22  to say that in this case it is a good project the

         23  way we are doing it and it is better and it fits

         24  their educational needs better and we will meet with

         25  the president and go over with you. It is a better
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          2  project overall and when they do, when their

          3  enrollment, if it does grow and they have other

          4  needs, then we have other plans to go in another

          5  location. That particular building, we are looking

          6  at that plan and it was a very troublesome project

          7  to expand vertically.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: All right. We,

          9  too, would like to meet with you on that, and also

         10  Hostos and whoever else you feel would be helpful to

         11  let us know what is going on there, and how we can

         12  help.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON: Madame

         14  Chair, if I may?

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Yes, go ahead.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON: Am I to

         17  understand, on the discussion around Hostos College,

         18  are you saying -- you said their needs have changed;

         19  is it because of the decline in population, as a

         20  result of welfare reform? Is that part of the

         21  picture in terms of the rescoping and the reshaping

         22  of the project? Does that have anything to do with

         23  it at all?

         24                 VICE CHANCELLOR MACARI: I think that

         25  their needs were changed and we were able to
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          2  identify their special space needs in other

          3  locations and that building that was supposed to

          4  have vertical expansion, two floors above a building

          5  that was not built originally for that structural

          6  added loads, and so it was a very troublesome

          7  project. So, we have been working with the college,

          8  it would have taken a long time and a lot of money,

          9  and the money, like you said, it wasn't coming and

         10  wasn't being supported, so we created another option

         11  to renovate it within the floors that exist and then

         12  in the future go to another location where the

         13  college prefers.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: I see.

         15                 VICE CHANCELLOR MACARI: And we have

         16  it, in the five-year capital plan we have that plan

         17  which we will share later.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON: Thank you.

         19                 But getting back to Medgar Evers

         20  College, what I would like to know is, is Dr.

         21  Jackson actively involved in the operation in terms

         22  of shaping the plan for Medgar Evers College?

         23                 VICE CHANCELLOR MACARI: Yes, he is.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON: He is

         25  actively involved, okay. I just wanted to make sure
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          2  he is involved in whatever is happening here.

          3                 VICE CHANCELLOR MACARI: He has been

          4  at all of the meetings that I mentioned.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON: Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: We have been

          7  joined by Councilman Carrion. Do you want to finish?

          8  And he has some questions to ask too.

          9                 Okay.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: Good

         11  afternoon. Madame Chair, thank you. I am sorry I was

         12  late.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: It's all right.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: Somebody put

         15  goop in the traffic today in New York City.

         16  Everywhere you go there is goop.

         17                 A couple of things that have struck

         18  me, I remember last year talking about College Now

         19  and I know that you have addressed it. We, as the

         20  Council, from our side, we added 1.2 million budget

         21  to expand it, actually double the size of College

         22  Now right?

         23                 VICE CHANCELLOR MIRRER: We have

         24  increased the size of College Now, and we believe we

         25  are now reaching about 8,000 students at this point.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: And then the

          3  Mayor's proposal would cut that back again and it

          4  would be in the same situation. Okay, and so you

          5  have covered that?

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Yes.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: Sorry about

          8  that.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Yes, that was a

         10  key question.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: With regard

         12  to TAP, as far as we know, the Governor's TAP

         13  proposal would present us with a $100 million loss.

         14  That is the staff discussions that we have had

         15  internally would take us there and would affect

         16  about 45,000 CUNY students, that's correct, right?

         17                 Where are we with those estimates? Is

         18  that a real estimate? Are we refining those

         19  estimates?

         20                 INTERIM CHANCELLOR BRABHAM: We

         21  actually think those are pretty good estimates. We

         22  have done them, looking at each of the planks in the

         23  Governor's proposal, in terms of the change of TAP,

         24  we tried to evaluate it on a campus-by-campus basis,

         25  so we think those estimates are very accurate.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            48

          1  CITY UNIVERSITY OF NEW YORK

          2                 You may know that in the Governor's

          3  budget the higher education service corporations'

          4  numbers are significantly smaller than that, but we

          5  think our numbers are more valid than those. About

          6  75 percent --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: What are

          8  their numbers.

          9                 INTERIM CHANCELLOR BRABHAM: Their

         10  number was in the neighborhood of a loss of $36

         11  million.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: That's a huge

         13  difference.

         14                 INTERIM CHANCELLOR BRABHAM: That's a

         15  big difference.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: So, two

         17  groups of analysts came up with different numbers.

         18                 INTERIM CHANCELLOR BRABHAM: That's

         19  right.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: But we think

         21  ours are more real here.

         22                 INTERIM CHANCELLOR BRABHAM: We

         23  believe so.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: This has

         25  always been sort of an ongoing back and forth, the
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          2  difference in impact on CUNY versus SUNY, and versus

          3  private institutions; can you elaborate a little bit

          4  about how this TAP proposal would impact differently

          5  on us here in the City of New York?

          6                 INTERIM CHANCELLOR BRABHAM: We

          7  believe that because our students are different, and

          8  the profile of our students are different than the

          9  students of both SUNY and of the privates, and as a

         10  consequence our students are usually poor and there

         11  are some statistics that are both in the budget

         12  request documents and also in the testimony that

         13  Vice Chancellor Mirrer gave about the profile of our

         14  students, and as a consequence of that our students

         15  are more significantly impacted by any kind of

         16  reduction in financial aid. And so in effect a

         17  reduction in financial aid becomes a kind of back

         18  door tuition increase for our students because of

         19  their economic profile.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: I was going

         21  to go there. I was going to say the Governor is not

         22  proposing a tuition increase but it is a virtual

         23  tuition increase.

         24                 INTERIM CHANCELLOR BRABHAM: Right.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: And I think
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          2  it is important that in the record at our budget

          3  discussions, that that be stated very clearly.

          4                 In terms of outlook, what is the

          5  outlook for restoration of the TAP program by the

          6  State Legislature, from your experience and your

          7  encounters with them?

          8                 INTERIM CHANCELLOR BRABHAM:  Probably

          9  if I had a real firm answer to that, I could be

         10  reading tea leaves, but the reality is a lot of

         11  people are concerned about the Governor's proposals

         12  for TAP, and it is not just CUNY but our colleagues

         13  in SUNY and the privates as well. And as you

         14  probably know, Chair Sullivan of the Assembly Higher

         15  Education Committee has been concerned about this.

         16  There are concerns throughout the State about the

         17  proposals, and we sincerely hope that when the

         18  budget is finalized that one of the thing that will

         19  be changed are the proposals for TAP.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: And finally,

         21  would you share your thoughts with us about linking

         22  the TAP program to on-time graduation? What is that

         23  all about?

         24                 INTERIM CHANCELLOR BRABHAM: In terms

         25  of what was the basis for the proposal, you know, we
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          2  can't really be sure. We would assume that what was

          3  intended is to try to give an incentive to students

          4  to progress more quickly towards a degree. But as

          5  Vice Chancellor Mirrer noted in her testimony, four

          6  years for a bachelor's degree is not even the norm

          7  anymore. It has changed.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: Let's be

          9  fair, right.

         10                 INTERIM CHANCELLOR BRABHAM: And

         11  considering the kind of obligations that our

         12  students have, it is sometimes quite unrealistic. We

         13  believe that students who work and raise a family

         14  and take on many obligations of adulthood, should

         15  not be penalized as a consequence of not being able

         16  to finish a degree in a particular period of time,

         17  but they should actually be congratulated for that

         18  because that takes enormous perseverance to juggle

         19  all of the things that many of our students have to

         20  juggle.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: I know, I

         22  have been there.

         23                 What is the norm in other

         24  institutions, private institutions?

         25                 VICE CHANCELLOR MIRRER: Well, the
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          2  national norm covers around five years, it is not

          3  four years.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: Right. We

          5  have a new student across the country, every

          6  institution has a new student and a lot of people

          7  going back to school, so it is five years. I think

          8  that is also very important that the record show

          9  that. You know, there is a number of initiatives

         10  that are taking place both here and in Albany that I

         11  think, and I think many of us believe are based on

         12  unrealistic expectations and an unrealistic reading

         13  of what is going on in the population, and part of

         14  our job is to remind those decision-makers that in

         15  fact we have to respond adequately and appropriately

         16  to the changing needs of the populous.

         17                 I also understand from the many

         18  discussions that we have had, that the student is

         19  getting older, the student is often times an

         20  immigrant, often times is working, often times has

         21  children, has a number of other obligations, so as

         22  we shape budgetary and education policy, we have to

         23  keep that in mind, and we hope to keep the pressure

         24  on this process to make sure we are answering the

         25  needs of the people.
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          2                 VICE CHANCELLOR MIRRER: I just would

          3  like to add that we certainly would like to

          4  encourage our students to graduate in as reduced

          5  period of time as it is possible for them to do

          6  that. That is the goal, they are in college, they

          7  want to get their degrees and that is what

          8  advantages them significantly in the workplace and

          9  elsewhere.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: Absolutely.

         11                 VICE CHANCELLOR MIRRER:  For students

         12  who are able to do that, we feel that our part of

         13  the bargain is to offer them sufficient sections of

         14  courses that they need to graduate, and we can do

         15  that better if we are funded to the extent that we

         16  can hire additional full-time faculty to make up for

         17  the tremendous depletion that has caused us not to

         18  be able to offer the programs and sufficient

         19  sections to the extent that we wish to.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: Right. It

         21  obviously begs a number of other questions that are

         22  part of this discussion and that need to be visited.

         23                 Thank you, Madame Chair. I will come

         24  back later.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: We have been
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          2  joined by Councilman Warden from the Bronx.

          3                 The City University is an urban

          4  campus and many of your students were like me and

          5  went to college at night or went part-time. The

          6  part-time TAP, aid to part-time students has not

          7  been successful.

          8                 I understand that you are

          9  experimenting or you are proposing a way of dealing

         10  with this which would be so essential to CUNY, maybe

         11  you could outline that for us a little bit.

         12                 INTERIM CHANCELLOR BRABHAM: Well, at

         13  this point we have proposed to do a pilot project to

         14  really find out what would be the cost of offering

         15  TAP to part-time students. There has been sort of an

         16  assumption, I guess that many of people have

         17  operated on that to do that would increase the cost

         18  so significantly as to be prohibited. But we are not

         19  really confident if that is indeed the case. We feel

         20  like if TAP were provided on a part-time basis, that

         21  it may well be that students would be able to be

         22  more realistic in the number of credits that they

         23  are actually taking.

         24                 Many of our students take the 12

         25  credits, even though they have other obligations and
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          2  they can't do that, realistically in their lives, in

          3  order to get TAP. And that seems to be the thing

          4  that generates the decision. We feel like if

          5  students could move through, as Dr. Mirrer said, at

          6  the pace that is appropriate for them, some of them,

          7  for some students that may be a little slower, if

          8  TAP were available on a part-time basis, that would

          9  make them more successful.

         10                 We do not believe that it would

         11  necessarily cost more as a consequence, because

         12  those students would be taking nine credits rather

         13  than 12 in order to get the TAP, and the cost would

         14  be less. So, we are trying to engage the state to

         15  allow us to offer a pilot program at one of our

         16  campuses to really test this hypothesis that would

         17  be cheaper and we are hoping that they will be

         18  encouraged by that proposal.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: How big is that

         20  plan? Your pilot plan?

         21                 INTERIM CHANCELLOR BRABHAM: Right now

         22  we are talking about doing it at one campus or maybe

         23  two. We are talking about doing it on a credit level

         24  basis.

         25                 This is Dean Les Jacobs.
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          2                 MR. JACOBS: Nothing has been approved

          3  obviously. We are looking at doing this on a credit

          4  level basis, university-wide for students who have

          5  already accumulated 24 credits. It is what we are

          6  going to propose.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: I see.

          8                 MR. JACOBS: We are afraid if we do it

          9  at one or two campuses that there might be a flood

         10  of students into that campus to take advantage of

         11  it.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: And you are

         13  building in a little insurance there by students who

         14  have completed 24 credits, so that you know they are

         15  serious and they are moving on.

         16                 We look forward to that. When I went

         17  to CUNY there was no tuition, certainly that is a

         18  reality today. We are learning that our students are

         19  even poorer today than they were back there, so that

         20  will be a big help to them, they all complain about

         21  that. As I move among them that is a real concern on

         22  how to meet their needs, and many of them really do

         23  need a part-time schedule. They can't deal with a

         24  heavy load.

         25                 Although some adjustments can be
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          2  made. I went through the ACE Program which was great

          3  with the seminars and I was able to take 12 credits,

          4  with one evening the three professors in the room

          5  and then on Saturday we did our sciences, and in

          6  this way I was able to take 12 credits which was

          7  really great. So I think innovative within the

          8  campus I think is healthy, of course there you had

          9  to be 30 and over to get in, which was all right

         10  because that meant you were a very serious student,

         11  and we have to even be tested to get in the program.

         12                 I have a question on, again it is

         13  capital; Dr. Sessums has projected a plan to put

         14  dormitories on Queens College Campus. I would like

         15  to know a little more about that, what you project

         16  it will cost and any of the detail that you might be

         17  knowledgeable about this?

         18                 VICE CHANCELLOR MACARI: At this time

         19  it is really just in the very, very early stages. We

         20  had started a master plan for Queens College, which

         21  is what we usually do before we go to a major new

         22  capital development, and that is just beginning. We

         23  had just gotten all the space data, the numbers of

         24  students and in in that plan we are discussing land

         25  use and there have been several areas on the campus
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          2  that have been proposed for land use for a dormitory

          3  if that happens, but I know the college has gone and

          4  asked for a feasibility study to some private

          5  company but they yet have not shared that with me, I

          6  haven't seen it yet, but there is a concept but it

          7  has not been developed yet and we have not presented

          8  it to our Board of Trustees or anything, it is in

          9  the very, very early stages.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Well, I am

         11  trying to understand the logic of dormitories on

         12  City University campuses, the reasoning behind it.

         13                 VICE CHANCELLOR MACARI: When the

         14  college is looking at attracting a different student

         15  that is looking to go away from home, I think they

         16  feel they can attract a lot of students from Long

         17  Island, and if they offer a number of dormitory

         18  rooms or suites they would attract those kinds of

         19  students that otherwise they don't live at home,

         20  they want to go away. And that is one of the things

         21  that the college wants to do to attract those

         22  students that would like to live away from home.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Probably it is

         24  wrong to be asking you some of these questions, but

         25  do we have any problem attracting students to CUNY?
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          2                 VICE CHANCELLOR MACARI: I think I am

          3  going to ask Louise to answer that.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Okay.

          5                 VICE CHANCELLOR MIRRER: No. In fact,

          6  our applications were out this year.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: You know, I

          8  just find it, first of all, the idea if they are

          9  going to expand the campus at all they would be

         10  going -- the local community there was up in arms

         11  because it is tough to park around Queens, but they

         12  have built parking lots and so on since I went and

         13  that is very helpful. But the concern now is that it

         14  is going to throw the cars down -- but of course I

         15  would feel the same way if I were one of them, but

         16  my concern here is the idea of attracting students

         17  outside of New York City to come there, and I don't

         18  quite understand.

         19                 Maybe Dr. Mirrer would respond.

         20                 VICE CHANCELLOR MIRRER: I think that

         21  the best thing to do is to ask Dr. Sessums for any

         22  description of the plan he has and rationale and to

         23  pass them on to you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: All right, he

         25  sent me a brief description of what he is planning,
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          2  which seems to be sort of moving away from CUNY

          3  altogether, so that is of course another concern

          4  that I have. But that is a topic for another hearing

          5  because we really want to know all about that. That

          6  is something I think we really have to look at and

          7  try to understand that a little better.

          8                 Councilman Warden, you have some

          9  questions you would like to ask?

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER WARDEN: Thank you very

         11  much. We are all aware the CUNY Board has changed

         12  the policy through the adoption of the resolution to

         13  restrict remedial offerings for the community

         14  colleges. Has CUNY reassessed the impact of that

         15  resolution?

         16                 VICE CHANCELLOR MIRRER: Assemblyman

         17  Warden --

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER WARDEN: Councilman.

         19  Don't send me to Albany.

         20                 VICE CHANCELLOR MIRRER: Sorry.

         21  Council Member Warden, I apologize.

         22                 The Chancellor has just sent

         23  guidelines to all of the presidents of those

         24  colleges that are affected, all of our senior

         25  colleges. The response that the presidents send in
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          2  will be presented to our board in May and we have

          3  said that we will share those plans, those plans

          4  will answer your questions better than we can do at

          5  this point, because we have asked them to assess the

          6  impact.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER WARDEN: But they have

          8  adopted it before the assessment? Isn't that the

          9  cart before the horse?

         10                 VICE CHANCELLOR MIRRER: The Board has

         11  adopted a policy and part of the resolution spelling

         12  out that policy called for the presidents to develop

         13  implementation plans of the policy, and these

         14  implementation plans are meant to incorporate an

         15  assessment of the impact of that resolution on the

         16  colleges as well as strategies that the colleges

         17  will use.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER WARDEN: Okay. Well,

         19  let me ask you this, since you really haven't done

         20  the reassessment: Can you comment on the role of the

         21  tightening of the admission standards at the senior

         22  college level, that as a result of the adoption of

         23  the resolution on enrollment levels, on senior

         24  college revenues and on the freshman skills

         25  assessment tests?
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          2                 VICE CHANCELLOR MIRRER: Well, we have

          3  good data on performance on the freshman skills

          4  assessment tests this year. We don't have a

          5  projection of performance for subsequent years, for

          6  the following years. Precisely the answers to the

          7  questions you have posed have been requested of the

          8  presidents in their implementation plans.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER WARDEN: Because we

         10  still don't know those answers.

         11                 VICE CHANCELLOR MIRRER: That's

         12  correct.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER WARDEN: I think,

         14  Madame Chair, we have to take a close look at this

         15  because as you know, when we go into activities such

         16  as this that is so sensitive among so many people in

         17  the City, we should at least have an idea of the

         18  impact, and it seems like this is done blindly.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: That is what we

         20  predicted and we are imposing on the University, we

         21  are imposing on the University, rather than the

         22  University -- it generating out of the University

         23  itself, out of its own experience with students so

         24  we are throwing one at you there, that trustees

         25  resolution. I want to see how that really works out,
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          2  and there is a concern that we are going to lose a

          3  lot of our students, they are going to be very --

          4  well, they are pretty upset about it even now, we

          5  will follow that one carefully.

          6                 I also, in reading an article about

          7  Chair Pollucci, that there are plans in the wings to

          8  also remove remediation from our two-year colleges.

          9                 VICE CHANCELLOR MIRRER: That has not

         10  been discussed at any Board meeting, any Board

         11  Policy Committee Meeting, at this point.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Right now we

         13  know that the community colleges have their own

         14  unique mission which they have done a wonderful job

         15  with, how do you see them taking the impact of all

         16  of the additional students that will be coming for

         17  remediation? Have you been able to make allowances

         18  at the community college level? In plans, I believe

         19  the first one to be implemented is in January of the

         20  Year 2000; am I correct?

         21                 VICE CHANCELLOR MIRRER: Well, I

         22  wouldn't at this point want to speculate on what

         23  plans the community colleges are making, but I can

         24  say with certainty that there have been discussions

         25  between senior college presidents and community
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          2  college presidents, and other affected members of

          3  the senior college and community college communities

          4  on some kinds of collaborations that would foster

          5  the successful implementation, if I want to say that

          6  of the resolution.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: I guess you

          8  won't be ready to kind of report back on the results

          9  or the status of that for awhile yet, until we give

         10  them a chance to try to deal with it.

         11                 VICE CHANCELLOR MIRRER: Well, after

         12  May 15th we will be in a position to share with you

         13  the plans that the colleges themselves have made,

         14  either for collaborations with community colleges or

         15  an increase in outreach to the high schools which

         16  the colleges are already engaged in, so on and so

         17  forth.

         18                 Certainly the expansion of College

         19  Now has played a very important role in improving

         20  the preparation of our students before they come to

         21  college, and we have really excellent data that

         22  demonstrates the impact that the College Now Program

         23  has had on raising the preparation of students so

         24  that they have far less remedial course work to do

         25  once they come to college.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: It is the way

          3  to go. And we are hoping that we can find some

          4  remedy for that cut to College Now, because it is so

          5  crucial to what everybody seems to be asking for,

          6  there is an answer, and to cut back on that answer

          7  is -- all right, I won't describe it.

          8                 Councilwoman Robinson had a question.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON: Thank you.

         10                 We have a great concern in the

         11  College Now Program and my question is whether or

         12  not there has been an evaluation of the College Now

         13  Program as to its success or non-success? And if so,

         14  have you tracked any of the students that have

         15  participated in the program so that perhaps we could

         16  see that data?

         17                 VICE CHANCELLOR MIRRER: We have

         18  several studies, one of them done just a few months

         19  ago by our Office of Institutional Research, which

         20  we will be happy to share with you. The data are

         21  impressive. They show a significant improvement in

         22  students preparation when they come to college, so

         23  that as I was just saying, those students take less

         24  remedial course work, they accumulate more college

         25  credits in a faster period of time, shorter period
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          2  of time, their grade point averages are also higher

          3  and the graduation rate is substantially increased.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON: So it is a

          5  proven good investment.

          6                 VICE CHANCELLOR MIRRER: Yes.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON: And we

          8  certainly want to see the continuation of it. Of

          9  course, we would like to see the expansion because I

         10  know when Dr. Goldstein had originally started with

         11  the program, that it was limited to a few campuses

         12  and then we fought for the expansion of it. So,

         13  certainly we want to ensure that our young people

         14  get an opportunity to be successful.

         15                 Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: A couple of

         17  questions on the collective bargaining. You started

         18  off by thanking us for the additional funding for

         19  this year, now for the general needs of the

         20  college.  Your budget request indicates a $5.2

         21  million new need for collective bargaining for the

         22  Fiscal Year 2000; what will be the possible impact

         23  if that money is -- you know, if that remains unmet?

         24                 INTERIM CHANCELLOR BRABHAM: Well, at

         25  this point we are hoping that by working with you
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          2  and with the Mayor's Office that we will be able to

          3  have those funds provided for us for next year, so

          4  we are hopeful. But let me tell you that there are

          5  some things in order to be able to give a sense of

          6  what $5.2 million buys at the community colleges,

          7  some things that we might have to do, and this is

          8  all hypothetical at this point, is elimination of a

          9  thousand class sections, which would probably result

         10  in a loss of 600 FTEs, and which would have

         11  subsequent losses in additional revenue and in state

         12  aid.

         13                 We would also have to cut back in

         14  other services at the colleges in student support

         15  services, perhaps an effort to enhance educational

         16  technology which is becoming so critical as you

         17  know, in this day and age, and also probably

         18  reductions in OTPS and in necessary equipment

         19  maintenance and in the fiscal -- taking care of our

         20  physical plans.

         21                 All of these things I say again are

         22  hypothetical, but $5.2 million is a real obligation

         23  of the community colleges of the University, and so

         24  we would have to make some hard choices if we did

         25  not have the $5.2 million.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: What was the

          3  rationale -- when you communicated with the

          4  Administration, what was the rationale for cutting

          5  back on helping out with the collective bargaining

          6  for the Year 2000? It is not in the budget, it has

          7  been cut out.

          8                 INTERIM CHANCELLOR BRABHAM: Right.

          9                 In the current year, I am not really

         10  aware of a rationale, but as you know, the current

         11  year, non-Mayoral agencies were generally not funded

         12  for collective bargaining, and CUNY was not

         13  different in that regard. Health and Hospitals

         14  Corporation was not funded, neither was OTB, the

         15  Transit Authority. So, we were in that way treated

         16  similarly to other agencies.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Except the

         18  Board of Education?

         19                 INTERIM CHANCELLOR BRABHAM: Except

         20  the Board of Education.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: And if

         22  education is the main agenda, certainly higher

         23  education is of equal importance. So if we are going

         24  to be an education government, then we have got to

         25  be an education government, right? And I am being
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          2  generous when I say government, okay?

          3                 What is CUNY doing in the long term

          4  to prepare for the City's lack of commitment to

          5  collective bargaining? And when does the current

          6  contract expire?

          7                 INTERIM CHANCELLOR BRABHAM: The

          8  current contract expires in July of next year, July

          9  of 2000. So we have one more fiscal year really that

         10  is covered by this contract, and we really do hope

         11  that we can engage in the conversation with the

         12  Council and with the Office of Management and Budget

         13  over the next few months to hopefully get these

         14  funds put into our budget.

         15                 One of the things, let me just add

         16  for your information, I think you are aware of this,

         17  is the 5.2 is the number that we need next year,

         18  assuming the continuation of the baseline budget.

         19  So, it is a number of top of where we currently are.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Yes.

         21                 Well, when I look at 1,000 class

         22  sections being cut, that is very devastating for the

         23  college, and I have been hearing that so many years,

         24  that class sections had to be cut out and that is a

         25  catastrophe for the college.
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          2                 Council Member Warden had another

          3  question. And then Councilman Carrion.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER WARDEN: We have for

          5  some time been dealing with the problem of John Jay,

          6  their Associate Degree Program and the Associate

          7  Degree Program at New York Tech. I guess common

          8  knowledge has the City responsible for the community

          9  college programs and the state responsible for the

         10  senior programs, and yet, we spend each year, those

         11  dollars, to assume the responsibility at John Jay

         12  and New York Tech.

         13                 Do you know if the administration is

         14  actively advocating for the State government to take

         15  over their responsibility, the responsibility that

         16  should be theirs and actually is theirs?

         17                 INTERIM CHANCELLOR BRABHAM: I am

         18  confident you all are aware of the history on this

         19  side, and the requirement that the state placed on

         20  the City to assume the cost of the Associate degree

         21  programs, New York City Tech and John Jay College

         22  happened in 1990, that was the first time that this

         23  was instituted for those two particular colleges,

         24  and after major efforts and efficacy on behalf of

         25  reversing that, there was an agreement that was

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            71

          1  CITY UNIVERSITY OF NEW YORK

          2  negotiated between the prior Governor and prior

          3  Mayor for some transfer of funds from a different

          4  funding source to offset the cost to the City for

          5  the $32 million. And I am proud to say, I think it

          6  is good for all of us, that that has not happened

          7  since 1990. Those numbers have not increased, the

          8  $32 million has remained the same since that

          9  agreement was forged by Mayor Dinkins and Governor

         10  Cuomo, and at this point in time the University is

         11  pleased that that agreement holds.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER WARDEN: So we are not

         13  trying to go any further on it?

         14                 INTERIM CHANCELLOR BRABHAM: At this

         15  point any action I guess further would be between

         16  the City and the State, since the agreement was a

         17  City/State agreement.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER WARDEN: Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Okay, Council

         20  Member Carrion.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: Thank you,

         22  Madame Chair. I am afraid that some day some

         23  historian is going to write about the privatization

         24  saga that we are experiencing. Because if you look

         25  at all of the pronouncements and attempts of changes
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          2  in education policy, they clearly point to sort of a

          3  dismantling of a system that has been very good for

          4  New York City and for this country and has created a

          5  tremendous amount of leadership and very productive

          6  citizens all across America.

          7                 And with that, the Mayor has, in his

          8  State of the City Address, mentioned a CUNY Voucher

          9  Program. In the last couple of days we have been

         10  talking about vouchers for the public schools, and

         11  we have a chancellor that threatened to quit if the

         12  Mayor stuck to that, and the Mayor of course then

         13  said, no, he is not going to quit, he is not that

         14  serious, and we are in this back and forth. We got

         15  Charter schools passed through the State

         16  Legislature, there seems to be, you know, the wind

         17  is moving in the direction away from the support for

         18  public education, especially, I think it is

         19  important to qualify, for quality public education

         20  for all people.

         21                 And I am tempted to pontificate here,

         22  and I will tell you why. Because when you look at

         23  the impact that these so-called educational reforms

         24  will have, for instance, we have 1.1 million

         25  children in the New York City public schools, less
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          2  than ten percent of the kids would be affected by

          3  charter schools, by an opportunity to develop, to go

          4  into a charter school.

          5                 The same thing holds for the

          6  vouchers. And now we are hearing another attempt to

          7  create a voucher program for higher public

          8  education. What does this mean?

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: That was the

         10  first one.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: Right.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Now he is

         13  talking public schools.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: Right.

         15                 So what is this about? What are you

         16  guys talking about internally in terms of this

         17  statement, this pronouncement that the Mayor may

         18  make in January, and let me just --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Council Member

         20  Carrion, we did cover that. That was a key question,

         21  early on before you came.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: Oh.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: But you are

         24  right on target.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: That is what
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          2  happens when you arrive late, right? Been there,

          3  done that.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: We are on the

          5  same wavelength though, and your question --

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: Did you get

          7  the cost? I mean, are you putting any resources into

          8  addressing it?

          9                 VICE CHANCELLOR MIRRER: No. What I

         10  answered before was that we haven't been talking

         11  about vouchers because we have no information about

         12  the proposal beyond it's mentioned in the Mayor's

         13  State of the City Address. And we have had no

         14  discussion with anyone at all. There has been no

         15  discussion, certainly no discussion in any of our

         16  Board of Trustees' meetings among the trustees.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: The Mayor's

         18  statement in his State of the City Address was to

         19  use vouchers for remediation.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: Right.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Of course those

         22  vouchers would go, you know the Mayor is opposed to

         23  remediation in the four-year colleges.

         24                 The vouchers would allow students who

         25  need remediation to go to other private four-year
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          2  colleges and use the vouchers to pay for remediation

          3  in those four-year colleges. Now, you tell me the

          4  logic of that.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: Economic

          6  development plan.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Yes, but not

          8  for CUNY.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: Did you touch

         10  on the privatization task force? I mean the Ben O.

         11  Schmidt Task Force?

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Yes, we did. We

         13  are waiting for the report which is about a month

         14  off from now, okay? All right.

         15                 You are right on target. You see, our

         16  members are all plugged in. And when he comes late

         17  and you see he is asking these things spontaneously,

         18  so you know that we are on the same wavelength.

         19                 Now, the state, the Governor has

         20  proposed the transfer of $5 million of CUNY Board of

         21  Ed collaborative programs, to move those programs on

         22  to the Board of Ed budget, that is serious. And how

         23  do you feel about that? Which programs would be

         24  affected and what the outlook for the state

         25  legislature now overturning that and restoring these
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          2  collaborative funds back to the CUNY budget? And has

          3  anybody discussed it with you?

          4                 VICE CHANCELLOR MIRRER: Well, we

          5  think it is important to have that money in our

          6  budget. It is for collaborations with the Board of

          7  Education and we have been using them, both to

          8  support high schools that are run by our colleges in

          9  collaboration with the Board of Education and for a

         10  host of other collaborative programs that we have,

         11  and including a couple that we have initiated just

         12  in the last year and in one case just in the last

         13  few months.

         14                 So, we would very much like to have

         15  that money back in our budget. It is important for

         16  it to be in our budget, because they are programs in

         17  which CUNY feels it has its best opportunity to

         18  reach out to its future students and to help them to

         19  meet the expectations that are either current at our

         20  colleges or will soon be implemented at our

         21  colleges.

         22                 It is veru important for us to have a

         23  mechanism to initiate, to generate the kinds of

         24  outreach programs that we feel will enable graduates

         25  of the New York City schools to have the opportunity
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          2  to come to CUNY. So we have been working hard to try

          3  to get that money restored and with certainly any

          4  assistance that you can provide, we would certainly

          5  very much appreciate it, it is quite important to

          6  us.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: I have always

          8  admired CUNY for using part of their budget to reach

          9  down into the high schools and move the students

         10  forward. Probably for many of us the biggest concern

         11  is getting our students into college, and certainly

         12  the collaborative programs have been historic with

         13  CUNY, I mean I remember them when I was on the

         14  Higher Education Committee in the Assembly, the

         15  collaborative programs have always been very

         16  important. And the collaborative program is a pull

         17  up, as I always described it, is a pull up and to

         18  keep the standards at the college level so that the

         19  youngsters are meeting a real goal. And so I am very

         20  disturbed by it and I do plan to, and I know my

         21  colleagues will join me in trying to rectify that of

         22  course. This is the state budget, we will have to

         23  work closely with our colleagues on a state level,

         24  but that is key and very important.

         25                 How will that impact on College Now?

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            78

          1  CITY UNIVERSITY OF NEW YORK

          2  Are they lumping that together with all of the other

          3  collaborative programs?

          4                 VICE CHANCELLOR MIRRER: Oh, we have

          5  used some of that budget to support our College Now

          6  Programs. We have also used those monies to support

          7  a new program that we began, the one I mentioned

          8  just a few minutes ago, called Looking Both Ways,

          9  which is an attempt to improve the writing ability

         10  of high school students. Those students now have to

         11  pass a pretty tough Regents examination in English,

         12  so that we have put together our best faculty in

         13  writing with a representative group of writing

         14  instructors, writing teachers, English teachers, I

         15  should say, in the high schools and they are meeting

         16  regularly.

         17                 They began meeting regularly and will

         18  continue meeting regularly to distribute the

         19  intelligence, the collective intelligence so that

         20  students can be better prepared to take and pass the

         21  new English regions. It is a very important

         22  initiative and that is I think a salient example of

         23  the type of collaboration that we use that budget,

         24  we have used that budget to support.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Again, you are
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          2  on target because we know that the writing exam, the

          3  writing assessment test is the toughest one for the

          4  students to pass.

          5                 You designed the program to meet

          6  that, Looking Both Ways, interesting. That was

          7  typical. CUNY is to be commended.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON: I just want

          9  to make a comment, in terms of the writing.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Yes.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON: I have seen

         12  that within the past years that there has not been a

         13  focus on penmanship. When I went to school there was

         14  a focus on penmanship and I started out with the

         15  circles and then I started to develop my letters.

         16                 The reason why I raise that is

         17  because I see a correlation, not only in the high

         18  schools, but it has to go down to the elementary

         19  school as well, so that children begin to formulate

         20  their writing habits. I mean, we did essays every

         21  week. We did something. You wrote sentences, you did

         22  something. So there has to be some articulation

         23  between the high school and the elementary schools,

         24  in terms of having them to begin formulating

         25  writing. I don't know why they stopped with
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          2  penmanship in schools.

          3                 I asked some young people that came

          4  into my office two years ago, and I said, how is

          5  your handwriting? Oh, she said, oh, it's fine, and

          6  then she began to print the envelopes because she

          7  had no knowledge of penmanship and writing, they

          8  don't teach that.

          9                 So, I am just saying there needs to

         10  be some articulation in that regard on the

         11  development of penmanship again. Maybe, you know,

         12  the more things change they remain the same, that

         13  now people want us to go back to that. So, I think

         14  that that needs to be passed on.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: One of the

         16  things that we are concerned about now, this is the

         17  City budget: CUNY is collecting $500,000 in

         18  additional ACE revenue, now that has previously been

         19  recognized by the City. Why does CUNY budget only

         20  reflect a $426,000 increase?

         21                 All right, let's start with that.

         22  Maybe I can get an answer to that first.

         23                 INTERIM CHANCELLOR BRABHAM: For all

         24  of the revenue that the University collects through

         25  its adult continuing education programs, the City
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          2  charges 17 percent, 17 and a half percent, as

          3  overhead for those dollars, and that overhead

          4  actually is really in two pieces. There is a ten

          5  percent overhead, and then there is a seven and a

          6  half percent that the City collects because they say

          7  that the teachers who are teaching in those programs

          8  are accruing pension rights. Although we have

          9  actually talked to the City for many years about

         10  this. We believe that this is a very steep rate to

         11  charge on these funds, and that particularly the

         12  seven and a half percent, because most of the people

         13  who teach in our adult and continuing education

         14  programs do not at any point in time get City

         15  pensions. We have tried to negotiate those amounts

         16  over the years and we would like to continue to

         17  reduce that amount of overhead or indirect cost that

         18  is charged against the adult and continuing

         19  education programs.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: All right,

         21  there is a surplus of $3 million in the City

         22  University Construction Fund, CUCF; will it be used

         23  to offset the City's debt service obligations for

         24  community college? What is the source of this

         25  surplus?
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          2                 VICE CHANCELLOR MACARI: The City

          3  University Construction Fund makes some money, when

          4  the money comes to pay for debt service.  Before we

          5  turn it into DASNE to pay the funds, it is invested

          6  with the City of New York, and so those monies are

          7  considered surplus, and also the tuition passes

          8  through the City University Construction Fund for a

          9  very short period of time and makes some money. And

         10  that money is usually used, it is not -- the City

         11  University Construction Fund is not-for-profit and

         12  it is used to pay debt service, usually to help a

         13  new project.

         14                 Like last year we paid debt service

         15  to finalize the acquisition of the LaGuardia Center

         16  3, so we identified some funds for that.

         17                 And then it also helps the City

         18  University in many different programs for which we

         19  are lacking funds, like we -- the trustees approved,

         20  the trustees of the fund, which are different than

         21  the trustees of CUNY, approve studies for education

         22  technology, they approve studies for a project

         23  management, for architectural project management, so

         24  both the City and the State use these funds usually

         25  to pay for debt service and then help us to pay for
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          2  other --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: How much goes

          4  to the debt service, and how much comes straight to

          5  CUNY?

          6                 VICE CHANCELLOR MACARI: It is not a

          7  prescribed amount, it depends on what the needs are.

          8  Nothing needs to go into debt service, because both

          9  the City and the State should put on their budgets

         10  the amounts of money that are necessary for the debt

         11  service.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Right.

         13                 VICE CHANCELLOR MACARI: Sometimes

         14  they are cut short and we looked at our monies and

         15  suggest it was used for that.

         16                 We also help out projects that

         17  sometimes run out of money during construction, that

         18  unanticipated problems that we might have with

         19  projects that sometimes contractors are fired and

         20  projects are put on hold, so that is what that money

         21  is for.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Well, we see

         23  that money being generated by CUNY and we want to

         24  see CUNY benefit by the money. That is really the

         25  message that I am trying to get across.
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          2                 VICE CHANCELLOR MACARI: I will pass

          3  it on to the trustees of the fund.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: Yes. They

          5  should be looking out for us there.

          6                 All right, I think that we have

          7  exhausted our questions for you. We appreciate your

          8  good, frank answers. Thank you very much.

          9                 VICE CHANCELLOR MIRRER: Thank you.

         10                 INTERIM CHANCELLOR BRABHAM: Thank you

         11  very much.
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